
City of Mission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, October 21, 2015 
7:00 p.m. 

Sylvester Powell, Jr. Community Center 
 

If you require any accommodations (i.e. qualified interpreter, large print, reader, hearing assistance) in                           
order to attend this meeting, please notify the Administrative Office at 9136768350 no later than 24                               
hours prior to the beginning of the meeting. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1.  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

● Recognition of Mission Farm & Flower Market Volunteers 
● Police Department Presentations 
● Introduction of Boy Scouts, Troop 189, Countryside Christian Church  

 
2.  ISSUANCE OF NOTES AND BONDS 
 
3.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
NOTE:  Information on consent agenda items has been provided to the Governing Body.  These                           
items are determined to be routine enough to be acted on in a single motion; however, this                                 
does not preclude discussion.  If a councilmember requests, an item may be removed                         
from the consent agenda for further consideration and separate motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  GENERAL 
 
3a.    Minutes of the September 16, 2015 City Council Meeting  
  
CONSENT AGENDA  Finance & Administration Committee 
  Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Packet 10715 

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Minutes 10715 
 
3b. Ordinance Amending Home Occupation License Requirements 
3c. Employee Benefit Renewals 
3d. Contract for County Weekend Intervention Program for DUI Convictions 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  Community Development Committee 

Community Development Committee Meeting Packet 10715  
Community Development Committee Meeting Minutes 10715  

 
3e. Replacement of Conference Room Carpet at Community Center 
3f. Traffic Striping Contract 
 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Approved Minutes from Board and Commission meetings are available on the  
City of Mission website under the “ Agendas & Minutes ” tab. 

http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6377
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6458
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6458
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6457
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6457
http://missionks.org/agenda.aspx


 
4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
5.  ACTION ITEMS 
 

Planning Commission 
 
5a. Gateway Preliminary Site Plan 
 

Miscellaneous 
 
 
6.  COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Finance & Administration, Arcie Rothrock 
  Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Packet 10715 

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Minutes 10715 
 
6a. Charter Ordinances for Election Transition 
 
 Community Development, Pat Quinn 

Community Development Committee Meeting Packet 10715 
Community Development Committee Meeting Minutes 10715 

 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
9.  MAYOR'S REPORT 
 

Appointments 
 

● Frank Bruce, Ward 3  Planning Commission 
 
10.  CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6458
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6458
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6457
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6457


 

City of Mission  Item Number:  5a. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY  Date:  10/16/2015 

Community Development  From:  Danielle Murray 
Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 
 

RE: Gateway Revised Preliminary Site Development Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The City Council approve Case #15-10 Revised Preliminary Site 
Plan for The Gateway Project with the conditions recommended by the Planning 
Commission.  Staff further recommends that the City Council consider adding a 28th 
condition as follows:  No construction or building permits will be issued until construction 
phasing is agreed to by the City and the Developer in an approved Development 
Agreement. 
 
DETAILS:  
In 2005 The Cameron Group, LLC, purchased the Mission Mall property with plans to 
build a mixed-use development on the site. In 2006 the Planning Commission reviewed 
and approved the rezoning and preliminary site plan for the redevelopment of the 
subject property for urban development composed of retail, office, hotel, restaurant, and 
residential uses.  Since the “MXD” zoning and preliminary site plan was first approved 
the project has evolved through several revisions reflected in revised plans presented to 
the Planning Commission and City Council in 2007, 2008, and 2012.  Each of these 
plan approvals included a range of stipulations for site development issues, and 
requirements for additional details to be provided with final plan reviews.   
 
At this time the applicant is proposing significant changes to the previously approved 
plan and is requesting a revised preliminary site plan approval for the entire 
development.  The applicant intends to proceed to file a final site development plan and 
to begin construction of the entire project as a single phase. 
 
Planning Commission Action 
The Planning Commission, at their September 28, 2015 meeting, voted 7-0 to 
recommend approval of the Case with twenty-seven (27) recommended conditions as 
contained in the staff report.  Minutes of the meeting are included in the packet. 
 
No protest petitions have been received. 
 
 

 

Related Statute/City Ordinance:   

Line Item Code/Description:   

Available Budget:   

 



STAFF REPORT 
Planning Commission Meeting September 28, 2015 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 3 
 
PROJECT NUMBER / TITLE: Application # 1510 
 
REQUEST: Revised Preliminary Site Development Plan for The 

Gateway Development 
 
LOCATION: Property located on the south side of Johnson Drive 

between Roeland Dr, Shawnee Mission Pkwy, and 
Roe Ave 

 
APPLICANT: Korb Maxwell, Polsinelli PC 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: The Gateway Developers, LLC 

Cameron Group, LLC 
6007 Fair Lakes Rd, Ste 100  
East Syracuse, NY 

 
STAFF CONTACT: Danielle Murray 

 
ADVERTISEMENT:   September 8, 
2015The Legal Record newspaper 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:   Planning 
Commission meeting, September 28, 
2015 

 
Property Information: 
The subject property is the site of the 
former Mission Mall and is zoned 
Planned Mixed Use District “MXD”. 
This district is intended to encourage 
a variety of land uses in closer 
proximity to one another than would 
be possible with more conventional 
zoning districts, and to encourage 
building configurations that create a 
distinctive and memorable sense of 
place.  Developments in this district 
are allowed and expected to have a 
mixture of residential, office and retail 
uses, along with public spaces, 
entertainment uses and other 
specialty facilities that are compatible 

1 



in both character and function. Developments are also expected to utilize shared 
parking facilities linked to multiple buildings and uses by an attractive and logical 
pedestrian network that places more emphasis on the quality of the pedestrian 
experience than is generally found in typical suburban development.  Buildings are 
intended to be primarily multistory structures with differing uses organized vertically 
rather than the horizontal separation of uses that commonly results from conventional 
zoning districts.  The property is also subject to the Mission, Kansas Design Guidelines 
for the Johnson Drive Corridor. 
 
Surrounding properties are zoned and developed as follows: 
Office zoned properties are located to the north, in the City of Roeland Park, “RP3” 
Planned Townhome District and “C2A” Pedestrian Oriented Business District to the 
west, and “R1” SingleFamily Residential District to the east and south. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Recommendation for this area:  
The Comprehensive Plan indicates this area is appropriate for Mixed Use HighDensity 
to be composed of a pedestrian friendly mix of neighborhood and community office 
uses, retailcommercial and servicecommercial uses, institutional, civic, and medium to 
high density residential. 
 
Project Background: 
In 2005 The Cameron Group, LLC, a development company from East Syracuse, New 
York, purchased the Mission Mall property with plans to build a mixeduse development 
on the site. In 2006 the Planning Commission reviewed and approved the rezoning and 
preliminary site plan for the redevelopment of the subject property for urban 
development composed of retail, office, hotel, restaurant, and residential uses 
(Ordinance #1203).  Since the “MXD” zoning and preliminary site plan was first 
approved the project has evolved through several revisions reflected in revised plans 
presented to the Planning Commission and City Council in 2007, 2008, and January 
2012.  Each of these plan approvals included a range of stipulations for site 
development issues, and requirements for additional details to be provided with final 
plan reviews.   
 
At this time the applicant is requesting a revised preliminary site plan approval for the 
entire development.  The applicant intends to proceed to file a final site development 
plan and to begin construction of the entire project as a single phase. 
 
The plan approved previously included a linear public plaza, or esplanade, along 
Roeland Drive and a four story parking structure directly connected to upper level retail 
and surrounding buildings as well as Shawnee Mission Parkway.  These features have 
been removed from the current application, and the parking structure is 3 stories with no 
below grade levels.  A hotel has been added to replace the retail and service uses at 
the south side of the site.  The development floor area has been reduced by 165,278 
square feet, and the amount of parking has also been reduced by 755 stalls. 
 
Plan Review  
The applicant is proposing a revised site plan maintaining largely the same perimeter 

2 



footprint and character with buildings lining all four surrounding streets.  The revised 
plan identifies six buildings throughout the site surrounding a partially freestanding 
three level interior parking garage (previously 4 levels).  The two buildings previously 
shown at the southwest corner of the site for restaurants and fitness uses have been 
replaced by a 200 room, 7story hotel and a 54,500, 5story office building (Buildings “B” 
and “F”).  
 
Similar to previous plans, Buildings “C”, “D” and “E” along Roeland Drive and Johnson 
Drive will contain a horizontal and vertical mix of users including retail and residential. 
Building “E” along Johnson Drive remains 4stories in height while Buildings “C” and 
“D” along Roeland Drive are reduced from 11 stories to 4.  Building “A” remains 
consistent with previous plans for “big box” retailers however, now in a singlestory 
structure, in the eastern portion of the site. 
 
Major revisions from plans approved in 2012 include the removal linear plaza or 
promenade along Roeland Drive and between the two buildings fronting this street. 
Instead, a boardwalk system is proposed to connect a surface parking lot to a more 
private green space.  This courtyard is proposed for the benefit of residents between 
these buildings and the semifree standing parking structure.  This new courtyard does 
include seating and a small performance area.   
 
The total floor area of this version has been reduced from 741,402 square feet to 
576,124 square feet.  In addition, the total number of parking spaces has been reduced 
with the elimination of a floor of parking.  The preliminary plan submitted for review by 
the Planning Commission includes the following total planned square footage by use: 
 
Use  Quantity (SqFt)2012  2015 (SqFt) 
Retail  390,866   382,974* 
Office  0  (none identified)  54,540** 
Residential  324,360   * 
Service/ Mechanical  26,176   not itemized 
Hotel  0   138,610 

Total  741,402 square feet  576,124 square feet 
Parking Provided  2,288 parking spaces  1,533 parking spaces 
*2015 tally combines Residential and Retail (see attached)  
**The applicant has stated that an office building would not be constructed unless a tenant has 
been identified first. 
 
The City’s development review team conducted a review of the preliminary plans as well 
as special studies of traffic and stormwater impacts.  A wide range of review comments 
and issues were provided to the applicant’s representatives.  While some issues are 
best addressed at the time of final plan or are construction details in nature, it was 
important to ensure such issues were considered by the applicant during the current 
planning stage since it is anticipated that final plans and building permits may be 
completed by late 2015 or early 2016. 
 
The following is a summary of issues identified by the city’s development review team 

3 



that must be addressed with final plans and/or development agreements: 
 

● Sustainable design and construction practices.  
● Building elevations and details for compliance with the Johnson Drive Design 

Guidelines (e.g. minimum percent of windows/glass for ground level retail 
structures, entrances from primary streets, awnings, storefront facades, etc. for 
structures along Johnson Drive and Roe Ave). 

● Private Sign Criteria. 
● Building and site design creating a “gateway” image at the intersection of 

Johnson Dr. and Roe Ave. 
● Useable open space and amenities for residential occupants (e.g. location, type, 

area) 
● Screening of rooftop mechanical units and the upper level of the parking garage. 
● Public and private pedestrian circulation plan throughout the development. 
● Sidewalk and streetscape design and amenities. 
● Integration of the Johnson County transit stop along the Johnson Drive frontage. 
● Safe accommodations for pedestrians and bike riders using the Rock Creek Trail 

from Martway St to Roeland Park. 
● Onsite traffic controls 
● Offsite traffic improvements to surrounding intersections and streets. 
● Turning movements and loading for trucks on Roe Ave. 
● Screening of the truck loading areas. 
● Dedication of rightofway as needed. 
● Storm water design information. 

 
Sustainable design and construction practices 
The City’s development review team initially suggested the project pursue and 
demonstrate a commitment to achieve LEED for Neighborhood Development 
(LEEDND).  This certification by the U.S. Green Building Council addresses a wide 
range of design and construction practices related to site design and green 
infrastructure and building components, such as energy and water efficiency, storm 
water management, civic spaces, and relationship to the surrounding community.  The 
applicant is opposed to certifying the project through this agency due to the increased 
upfront certification costs; however as indicated with previously approved plans will 
“…entertain and implement prudent design principles that follow a ‘green’ protocol in the 
spirit of a LEED project in the form of a Sustainable Design and Construction 
Implementation Plan (SDCIP). ”   
 
Staff NotesSustainability The Mission Sustainability Commission has developed a 
rating and certification system for development projects.  The proposed revised plans 
would be reviewed by the Sustainability Commission who would provide their opinion of 
the plan to the Planning Commission at the time of Final Site Plan review. 
 
Johnson Drive Design Guidelines 
The Johnson Drive Design Guidelines provide a wide range of recommended and 
required design elements applicable to the development.  These include streetscaping 
and the relationship of buildings and their exterior facades to public streets.   

4 



 
Staff NotesDesign Guidelines: The plans submitted for consideration by the Planning 
Commission (including architectural vignettes and artist sketches) do not clearly 
demonstrate compliance with key elements of the Design Guidelines, most notably for 
Building “A” which is the big box retail building on the east side of the site.  Critical 
design details not addressed with submitted plans include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 
 

a. Display windows of all buildings facing Johnson Drive.  The Design Guidelines 
indicate at least 75% of the façade is required to incorporate glass for the first 
floor of buildings facing Johnson Drive and is encouraged along Roe Avenue. 
False windows, glass block, dark tinted glass, or windows at a height not allowing 
visibility into the retail space for pedestrians at street level would not achieve the 
requirement for display windows for the street frontage of Building “A”.  The 
street level of Building “A” may include display windows as traditionally included 
with department stores in urban mixeduse environments.  These walls should 
not serve as large sign panels as they otherwise would in a conventional 
suburban district big box shopping center. 

 
b. Large buildings fronting multiple streets should provide multiple entrances 

oriented to engage the primary public street. Building “A” as currently depicted 
does not achieve the design guidelines outlined in this section.  

 
c. Building awnings and canopies along street frontages. Final plans should make 

clear how building frontages along perimeter streets achieve this design 
requirement.   

 
d. Signage.  Final plans will need to include private sign criteria that clearly identify 

the proposed sign standards.  It is recommended that such signage be consistent 
with the character of the development and should not reflect the appearance of a 
suburban big box shopping center.  

 
e. Screening of truck loading areas.  Additional detail will be needed with final plans 

to identify the treatment of building walls facing Roe Ave. and screening of truck 
loading areas. 

 
Building Design and Material Pallet  
The proposed building materials and architectural style is reflected in photos submitted 
on plan sheets PDPA800.  Specific building materials and colors have not been 
identified.  A modern contemporary architectural theme is represented by the images, 
generally consisting of concrete, glass, and metal finishes.   
 
Staff NotesBuildings: The modern contemporary theme of the submitted plans is 
consistent with plans approved in 2012, and visually sets this development apart from 
other conventionally designed retail destinations and residential areas in the Kansas 
City area.   
 

5 



Final plans will need to provide more detail about the relationship of the buildings to the 
pedestrian realm as required by the Johnson Drive Design Guidelines. Of particular 
concern on Building “A” is the street level façades and the appearance of the building 
facing the intersection of Johnson Drive and Roe Avenue.   
 
Civic Space 
The submitted plans replace the Roeland Drive linear public space or esplanade and 
plaza area with a boardwalk system that connects to courtyard area between the 
buildings along Roeland Drive and the parking structure.  This space is proposed for the 
benefit of residents and as an amenity for the ground floor restaurants or retailers.  This 
new courtyard does include seating and a small performance area.   
 
Staff NotesCivic Space:  The proposed plan moves away from gathering spaces in 
the public realm towards spaces that are interior to the site and designed to benefit 
onsite residents and customers.  Additional amenities for residents are contemplated in 
cooperative arrangements with the hotel for the shared use of their facilities such as the 
pool facilities.  The intent of the “MXD” zoning district is to encourage public spaces that 
are compatible in in character and function with the other uses surrounding them.  With 
the primary ground floor focus on retail, a boardwalk and courtyard allow for circulation 
between stores and restaurant and provides an area of greenspace for residents.  
 
Parking and Loading 
The submitted plan provides 1,533 parking spaces for the mix of retail, residential, office 
and hotel uses. This includes angled parking spaces along Johnson Drive adjacent to 
streetlevel retail in Building “E” and a surface parking lot is adjacent to Roeland Drive 
for Buildings “C” and “D”.   
 
The submitted plans are consistent with the previous plans with the multilevel parking 
structure located in the center of the development, and mostly wrapped with 
buildings.The parking structure is Lshaped with two floors of parking above one slightly 
larger level of surface parking.  A single circulator to the upper floors is located on the 
south end of the structure.  The lowest level is no longer below grade and is intended 
for retail visitors.  The upper levels will be for hotel guests and the residential units. 
 
The applicant has supplied an analysis of the minimum number of parking spaces 
based on the submitted mix of uses required by the City Zoning Ordinance.  A minimum 
of 1,328 spaces is required and a maximum of 1,992 is allowed.  Also, in compliance 
with ordinances, no more than 60% of the parking provided is located at grade.   In 
accordance with city ordinances, the Planning Commission and City Council may 
reduce the required parking after considering documentation and/or a study provided by 
the applicant (Section 410.440).  No such reduction is necessary at this time.   
 
Staff NotesParking: The zoning district and the Johnson Drive Design Guidelines 
support structured parking and minimizing the amount of surface parking in 
redeveloping areas of the city.  While some parking may be reserved for specific users 
(e.g. residential), it is anticipated much of the parking in the parking structure can be 
shared between various tenants or users.  It is desirable to minimize the amount of 

6 



unnecessary and costly parking that would otherwise not be used due to the ability to 
share parking.  The close proximity of transit services and the Rock Creek Trail may 
also help reduce parking demand.    
 
The proposed plan includes a 96 stall surface parking lot between Roeland Drive and 
Buildings “C” and “D”. Significant landscaping, berms, decorative walls or a combination 
of these things will be required around it’s perimeter to comply with the zoning 
standards.   
 
Additional details will be necessary with final plans to ensure parking decks are 
screened from the view of surrounding roadways to the fullest extent possible. 
Additional details are needed with final plans to ensure rooftops and mechanical areas 
are also adequately screened from view. 
 
On and Off Site Public Improvements 
The developer is responsible for installation of streetscaping (sidewalk, street trees, 
benches, bike racks, street lights, etc) around the perimeter of the development and for 
providing public improvements offsite (crosswalks, modifications to traffic signals, turn 
lanes, etc).   
 
Staff NotesPublic Improvements: A minimum 8foot wide sidewalk clear zone along 
Johnson Drive must be provided in addition to adequate space for a streetscape 
amenity zone (street trees, tree wells, street lights, signage, etc.) and a seating area 
zone for any proposed outdoor restaurant space.  The ideal minimum width for all zones 
combined is 20feet from the street curb to the building wall.  Additional details are 
needed with final plans to ensure the Johnson Drive frontage provides adequate 
sidewalk dimensions to ensure a comfortable pedestrian environment for a successful 
retail and walking atmosphere.  A minimum 5foot wide sidewalk clear zone along 
Roeland Drive (except Rock Creek Trail segments) and Roe Avenue is required for the 
same reasons.  Dimensions for the portion of Roeland Drive to accommodate the 
extension of the Rock Creek Trail is discussed below.  Additional street rightofway 
dedication may be required with final plans and plats. 
 
Signs 
The City ordinance currently does not specifically regulate signs in the “MXD” Planned 
Mixed Use District.  However, the Sign Code requires shopping centers to establish 
private sign criteria governing all exterior signs in the development and that the 
Planning Commission review and approve these criteria as part of a final site plan 
approval.  For purposes of the sign code, the term "shopping center” means a project of 
one (1) or more buildings that has been planned as an integrated unit or cluster on 
property under unified control or ownership at the time that zoning was approved by the 
City.  The sale, subdivision or other partition of the site after zoning approval does not 
exempt the project or portions thereof from complying with these regulations relative to 
signs to be installed.  Approved private criteria are binding upon all subsequent 
purchasers or lessees within the development.   
 
Staff NotesSigns: The city’s sign code indicates criteria shall be for the purpose of 

7 



assuring harmony and visual quality throughout the development.  The size, colors, 
materials, styles of lettering, appearance of logos, types of illumination and location of 
signs shall be set out in such criteria.  Unless addressed by the Planning Commission 
and City Council with the preliminary plan approvals, signage will be further addressed 
with final development plans.  This will be an opportunity to ensure the signage for “big 
box retailers” will be aesthetically compatible with the character of the development and 
the surrounding area.  Final development plans shall not be approved until the Planning 
Commission has approved the sign criteria.  After approval, no sign permit will be 
issued by the City for a sign that does not conform to the approved criteria.  
   
Public Transportation 
A transit stop area has been installed along Johnson Drive near the intersection of Roe 
Avenue.  
 
Staff NotesTransit Stop: The transit adjacent to the Gateway site is part of the system 
of newly enhanced bus facilities installed in the Metcalf Ave/Shawnee Mission Parkway 
corridor as part of a federal TIGER grant. Final plans will need to provide additional 
detail about the integration of the transit stop with the sidewalk and streetscape designs.   
 
Rock Creek Trail Extension 
The continuation of the Rock Creek Trail from Martway Street to the Roeland Drive 
Johnson Drive intersection is required.  The submitted plans identify a 10ft wide 
sidewalk along the east side of Roeland Drive north of the Martway intersection, 
continuing north across Johnson Drive to Roeland Park.   
 
Staff NotesTrail: Final plans will need to further detail this multiuse path to ensure an 
unobstructed width and adequate crosswalks for trail users.  Additional directional signs 
may be required to mark the trail continuation.   
 
Traffic 
Access into the site is proposed from five access points, three on Roeland Drive, one on 
Johnson Drive, and one on Roe Avenue.  The entrance previously proposed on 
Shawnee Mission Parkway has been eliminated.  All intersections surrounding the 
subject property are currently signalized.  The applicant has submitted an update to the 
previous traffic study analyzing current conditions and proposed conditions after 
development.  The applicant has proposed improvements to accommodate the 
expected daily trips the development will generate.   
 
The City’s oncall traffic engineer, George Butler Associates (GBA), has reviewed the 
applicant’s revised Traffic Impact study and the preliminary site plans.   GBA generally 
accepts the applicant’s proposed improvements as adequate for the expected traffic 
impacts of development of the site.  They have provided comments for the applicant to 
address before the study or final site plan are accepted.  The Kansas Department of 
Transportation (KDOT) will also need to review and accept any changes proposed to 
the intersection of Shawnee Mission Parkway at Roeland Drive as this is a US Highway 
under their jurisdiction.  An excerpt of the Traffic Impact Study is attached. 
 

8 



Stormwater Management 
The subject property generally drains to the eastnortheast with the main outfall near the 
northeast corner.    A multibarrel reinforced concrete box (RCB) drainage system was 
installed across the site for this portion of Rock Creek.  The RCB’s were designed to 
convey the 100 year storm event and a letter of map revision (LOMR) has been 
approved by FEMA taking the property out of the flood zone.  Therefore a floodplain 
permit is not required.   
 
The City’s oncall engineer at GBA is also reviewing the Drainage study and the 
proposed preliminary site plans for storm water control.  Under consideration is the 
amount of impervious surface in the development scenario, peak water flows after rain 
storms, and the location of below ground development features in relation to existing 
storm sewers.  In the past, a reduction in the amount of impervious surface has been 
demonstrated by the addition of green space compared to the existing (predemolition) 
condition.  Also, the layout of the piers footings for the new buildings will be reviewed 
against the pier plan used during the construction of the RCB’s.  Any comments for the 
applicant to address will be required to be resolved before the study or final site plan are 
accepted.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
The proposed development conforms with the Comprehensive plan and meets the 
overall intent of the “MXD” zoning district.  The proposed preliminary site development 
plan demonstrates a mix of three to four distinct uses within an area approximately 
equal to four city blocks.  Those uses are arranged vertically in buildings “B”, “C”, “D”, 
and “E”.  In addition, 75 percent of the total floor area of the development is located in 
multistory buildings which are a minimum of 4stories in height. These uses will utilize 
shared parking which is to be centrally located, screened from view from the public 
realm, and multistoried.  For the most part, parking will not be reserved by use. 
Pedestrian connections via public sidewalks, and private boardwalks or walkways are 
designed to make all portions of the development easily accessible on foot.  Special 
attention to streetscape features such as sidewalk widths, shade trees, pedestrian scale 
street lights, and amenities like seating and landscaping will make the quality of the 
pedestrian experience inviting and lively. All of these features when combined with a 
coordinated architectural style contribute to create a distinctive sense of place which is 
compact, urban, and active.  
 
While the development is generally in conformance with zoning and site planning 
requirements, several details do remain unresolved.  Many of these details are beyond 
the required scope of a preliminary site plan and therefore not deficiencies in the 
submitted plans which would necessitate rejection of the application at this point. 
However, Staff desires to be proactive in its recommendations in preparation for the 
eventual submittal of a final site plan.  The following recommendation contains 
conditions which are both carryovers from the original rezoning of the property in 2006 
under Ordinance #1203 and specific directions for revisions to be included in a future 
and separate final site plan submittal.  Conditions placed on the rezoning of the property 
which are still applicable to the development are included below as noted in parenthesis 

9 



as Rezoning.  The sources of all other conditions are noted as such. 
 
Therefore, Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of the 
Preliminary Site Development Plan for Case # 1510 The Gateway to the City Council 
with the following conditions: 
 

1. The entire development shall be subject to the recommendations of the Design 
Guidelines for the Johnson Drive Corridor, including frontages along Johnson 
Drive, Shawnee Mission Pkwy, Roe Avenue, and Roeland Drive.  Plans 
submitted for Final Plan Review shall comply with said Design Guidelines as well 
as any more restrictive requirements within the “MXD” zoning regulations or as 
established by the rezoning stipulations. (Rezoning1) 

 
2. The street level of all buildings along public rightofway shall incorporate window 

glazing consistent with the Design Guidelines for the Johnson Drive Corridor. 
Flat, blank (windowless and unmodulated) or false windows shall be prohibited 
along public rightofway. (Rezoning2) 

 
3. Entrances should be oriented to engage the primary public street.  Large 

buildings that front multiple streets should provide multiple entrances and provide 
entrances convenient to parking areas.  Provide a public entrance for Building A 
along Johnson Drive. (Comments 9.22.15) 

 
4. The appearance of Building “A” facing the intersection of Roe Ave. and Johnson 

Drive shall have a signature design and shall be oriented to provide a visual 
appearance consistent with the remainder of the development. (Rezoning-9) 

 
5. Provide additional massing studies/views to demonstrate how the Building “A” 

truck loading area will be screened from view from Roe Avenue.  Any visible wall 
elevations along Roe Ave should be finished with the same architectural 
appearance and detailing as the remainder of the structure visible from Johnson 
Drive and Shawnee Mission Pkwy. (Comments 9.22.15) 

 
6. Provide additional massing studies/views to demonstrate how the development 

design will create a gateway into the community at the Johnson Drive/Roe 
Avenue intersection. (Comments 9.22.15) 

 
7. The exterior of the parking structure visible from public rightofway shall be 

finished with a façade treatment consistent with the architectural character of the 
entire development. (Rezoning10) 

 
8. Plans need to demonstrate the visiblity of the upper deck of the parking structure 

from Shawnee Mission Parkway and Roeland Drive.  Screening may be required 
in various locations to reduce views of the parking deck. Unscreened views of the 
Building “A” rooftop will be acceptable if designed as a green roof. (Comments 
9.22.15) 

 

10 



9. Plans need to demonstrate how the appearance of the upper deck of the parking 
structure and the rooftops of surrounding buildings will be enhanced for the views 
from the residential buildings “C”,”D”,”E”, and “B”.  HVAC units, antennas, 
skylights, exhaust fans/vents or other similar elements should be screened from 
view of these buildings and the public streets. (Comments 9.22.15) 

 
10.A list of special conditions / standards for this development shall be included 

within an Architectural Standards / Tenant Criteria Booklet.  The booklet shall 
include a list of architectural features, such as awnings, balconies, bay windows 
etc., that may be permitted to encroach the public sidewalk and also include the 
maximum distance of encroachment. (Rezoning13) 

 
11.Unique and creative signage shall be permitted within the development.  Sign 

standards shall be provided in the Architectural Standards / Tenant Criteria 
Booklet, and shall be reviewed for approval by the Planning Commission with 
Final Plan Review. (Rezoning14) 

 
12.Any outdoor seating areas proposed within public rightofway shall be identified 

and reviewed with the Final Plan Review. (Rezoning12) 
 

13.Lighting within the site shall be consistent with the architectural and pedestrian 
character of the development.  Lighting on the site shall be directed away or 
screened from existing residential properties. (Rezoning15) 

 
14.Final plans will need to demonstrate safe accommodations for multimodal Rock 

Creek Trail traffic from the current terminus of the trail along Roeland Drive to 
Roeland Park. (Rezoning18)  

 
15.A continuous public sidewalk shall be provided along Roeland Drive, Johnson 

Drive, and Roe Avenue.  The Roe Avenue sidewalk shall link sidewalks at the 
intersection of Johnson Drive with a sidewalk extending under Shawnee Mission 
Pkwy.  Sidewalk improvements shall include pedestrian connections/crosswalks 
across adjacent intersections.  These improvements shall be designed to meet 
ADA and MUTCD criteria and provide functional pedestrian connections to the 
Rock Creek Trail, transit center, transit stops, and across Shawnee Mission 
Parkway (Zoning & GBA) 

 
16.Street trees should be planted between the curb and walking path of the sidewalk 

thus providing a more pleasant pedestrian experience separated from traffic. 
Minimum sidewalk width along Johnson Drive is an unobstructed walking surface 
of 8’ and 5’  unobstructed width along Roeland Drive.  Minimum widths may need 
to be increased to accommodate additional features such as trail connections or 
building entrances.  Sidewalks and onstreet parking should be located in the 
public rightofway.  Dedication of rightofway should be resolved with the final 
plat or by separate document. (Comments 9.22.15) 

 
17.Several missing links in pedestrian circulation need to be addressed.  Provide a 

11 



walkway connection from Roe Ave along the south side of Building “A” to provide 
a direct pedestrian connection to the lower level of retail; from the north side of 
Drive 2 to Building “C”; from the north side of Drive 3 to Building “D”; from the 
west side of Drive 4 to the rear of building “E’; crossing Drive 4 to the front of 
Building “A”; from public stair on Level 2 to the hotel lobby.(Comments 9.22.15) 

 
18.Street rightofway, offsite traffic improvements, permitted points of access, 

pedestrian connectivity, etc. shall be determined prior to approval of a replat and 
final development plan for the subject property and shall be consistent with the 
Design Guidelines for the Johnson Drive Corridor and the East Gateway 
Streetscape Standards. (Rezoning3 & 4) 

 
19.The developer shall be responsible for streetscape improvements along 

perimeter roadways and intersections.(Rezoning5) 
 

20.The developer shall be responsible for implementation of recommended storm 
water and other utility improvements unless otherwise described in a 
development agreement with the City of Mission.  Required easements shall be 
coordinated with the City and other utility providers and identified with the final 
plat and final development plan for the property. (Rezoning6) 

 
21.A utility and infrastructure plan shall be submitted prior to approval of the 

development plan. (Rezoning7) 
 

22.Buildings submitted for Final Plan review shall be designed in accordance with 
the requirements of city staff, city consultants, and other utility providers to 
maintain adequate clearance from storm water structures and other utilities. 
(Rezoning-8) 

 
23.The City of Mission reserves the right to impose time limits on large vehicle 

deliveries to the site. (Rezoning17) 
 

24.The City of Mission reserves the right to limit access to a rightin /rightout 
configuration for vehicular entrances along Roe Ave and the southernmost 
access point along Roeland Drive. (Rezoning19&20) 

 
25.Provide additional detail at final site plan regarding vehicle turning 

accommodations, using the appropriate design vehicles previously identified, for 
the retail dock area along Roe Avenue, emergency access for the Fire District at 
each access drive and along all primary internal service routes, school bus/tour 
bus circulation and parking, and other service delivery routes on the interior of 
the site. (GBA) 

 
26.A final traffic study and final stormwater drainage design plan must be submitted 

for review with the final site plan.  The appropriate text, maps, drawings and 
tables must be included. (GBA) 

 

12 



27.Staff reserves the right to provide additional comments or stipulations on 
development plans until all traffic or storm drainage related concerns have been 
addressed. (GBA) 

 
Planning Commission Recommendation 
The Planning Commission, at their September 28, 2014 meeting, voted 70 to 
recommend approval  of Case # 1510 to the City Council with conditions 127 as 
recommended by staff. 
 
 

13 



Building GROSS square footages per level  (PDP)
1503 - Gateway
Updated: 08/17/2015

 level Res / retail hotel walmart office total/lvl % of total total w/o office % total w/o offce
level 1 (at-grade) 57,035 7,610 149,892 n/a 214,537 37.24% 214,537 41.13%
level 2 56,925 22,000 n/a n/a 78,925 78,925
level 3 62,197 17,000 n/a 16,940 96,137 79,197
level 4 56,925 23,000 n/a 18,800 98,725 79,925
level 5 n/a 23,000 n/a 18,800 41,800 23,000
level 6 n/a 23,000 n/a n/a 23,000 23,000
level 7 n/a 23,000 n/a n/a 23,000 23,000

Total 233,082 138,610 149,892 54,540 576,124 521,584

* Note: All square footages are approximate

62.76% 58.87%

















12 September 2012

Site Plan

Site Plan

PD1

6700 Fair Lakes Rd. Suite 100
East Syracuse, NY 13057

315-362-8800



MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015

MISSION GATEWAY
A MULTI-USE RETAIL DEVELOPMENT
JOHNSON DRIVE AND ROE AVENUE, MISSION, KS

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

SURFACE LEVEL PARKING: 619 STALLS

WALMART PARKING:
 607 STALLS

5

6

5

OPEN TO BELOW

OPEN TO BELOW

OPEN TO BELOW

HOTEL RESTAURANT NO. 1
4,800 S.F.

LOBBY / LOUNGE
2,040 S.F.BAR / LOUNGE

 1,650 S.F.

HOTEL RESTAURANT NO. 2
 7,400 S.F.

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO
BELOW

OPEN TO
BELOW

V
C

FITNESS/
LOUNGE

OPEN TO BELOW

DN
10%

5

OPEN TO BELOW

6

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

VC

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 25' 50' 100'

04.29.15

PDP-A050
SITE PLAN

BUILDING C

BUILDING B

BUILDING F

BUILDING A

BUILDING D

BUILDING E



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IVE

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K

 C
R

EEK
 TR

AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

TR
A

IN
IN

G
C

B
L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

TO
IL

E
T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
TO

R
A

G
E

FO
O

D
TE

N
A

N
T

TE
N

A
N

T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
FF

IC
E

C
O

U
N

TI
N

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E
S

TO
R

A
G

E

C
A

R
T

S
TO

R
A

G
E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

TI
C

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

AY

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
TA

C
TS

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
FF

IC
E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

TO
IL

E
T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
TI

B
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

AT
E

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
AT

E
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
TI

S
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI  COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

AT
U

TI
LI

TY

H
A

LL
W

AY

M
E

AT
C

O
O

LE
R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

TO
M

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

TU
R

N
S

TO
R

A
G

E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

AY

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

AY

V
E

S
TI

B
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
A

S
TE

B
A

LE
A

N
D

PA
LL

E
T

S
TO

R
A

G
E

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

FN

X
LS

FN

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

FN
FN

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
S

S 
LE

A
S

A
B

LE
 A

R
E

A
" P

E
R

 W
M

 G
U

ID
E

LI
N

E 
= 

15
4,

46
9 

S
F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

LOADING

LEVEL 1 HOTEL
HOTEL SERVICES 7,610 GSF

+ 930'-0"

SURFACE LEVEL PULL-IN PARKING: 31 STALLS

SU
R

FAC
E

 LEVEL PAR
KIN

G
: 96 STALLS

V
C

STORAGE
1100 S.F.

 MECHANICAL
600 S.F.

STORAGE
1,600 S.F.

WORK .
OFFICE

- 325 S.F.

HOUSEKEEPING
620 S.F.

FOOD AND
BEVERAGE
STORAGE

800 S.F.

C
A

FE
TE

R
IA

20
0 

S
.F

.

DOCK/
RECEIVING

300 S.F.

TRASH

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F

.

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F

.

90'-1"

70'-2"

SURFACE LEVEL PARKING: 619 STALLS

GC3GC3GC3GC3GC3GC3GC3

G
C

3
G

C
3

VC

WOOD BOARDWALK

PERFORMANCE STAGE

BENCH SEATING

SMALL OFFICE/ RETAIL
15,273 GSF

+ 930'-0" - 932'-0"

SMALL OFFICE/ RETAIL
21,323 GSF

+ 931'-0" - 935'-0"

SMALL RETAIL
19,439 GSF

+ 932'-0"- 935'-0"

317'-6" 77'-10" 319'-5"

70'-11"

211'-10"

31'-11"

PARKING TOTALS  

LEVEL QUANTITY
LEVEL 1 746
LEVEL 2 410
LEVEL 3 376

_____
TOTALS 1532

                     

22'-2"

211'-10"

264'-6"

38'-7"

MASONRY WALL

MASONRY WALL

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects .com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 1

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A051
SITE PLAN (LEVEL 1)



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

E

UP

16

5

4

24

LARGE
MEETING

ROOM
600 S.F.

LARGE
EVENT
SPACE

6,080 S.F.

SMALL
MEET.
ROOM

225 S.F.

SMALL
EVENT
SPACE

2,975 S.F.

LOBBY
2,000 S.F.

EVEN SPACE
PRE-FUNCTION

1,000 S.F.

26

3

12

34

18

HEALTH FOODS RESTAURANT
3,500 S.F.

SPA CIRCULATION / EVENT SPACE
1,400 S.F.

ESTHETICIAN
ROOMS
725 S.F.

R
E

S
T 

R
M

.
17

0 
S

.F
.

SPA TREATMENT ROOMS
700 S.F.

SPA TREATMENT
ROOMS
600 S.F.

R
E

S
T 

R
M

.
17

0 
S

.F
.

SPA ADMINISTRATION
560 S.F.

SPA
DECK

5,200 S.F.

C
O

FF
E

E
15

5 
S

.F
.

FR
O

N
T

D
E

S
K

17
5 

S
.F

.

B
E

LL
/

C
O

A
T

15
0 

S
.F

.

BUSINESS
CENTER
200 S.F.R

.R
.

ADMIN. OFFICES
1,575 S.F.

H.R.
190 S.F. R

.R
.

CONFERENCE ROOM
2,000 S.F.

CONFERENCE ROOM
2,800 S.F.

LOBBY
2,000 S.F.

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

HOTEL DROP OFF

THRU TRAFFIC

HOTEL TRAFFIC

OPEN TO BELOWOPEN TO BELOW

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO BELOW

BOUTIQUE SPA
5,700 S.F.

LEVEL 2 HOTEL;
22,000 SF
+947'-0"

87'-6 7/8"

LEVEL 2 RESIDENTIAL,
55,925 GSF; 61 UNITS

+947'-0"

LEVEL 2 PARKING: 410 STALLS
+ 947'-0"

49 51

V
C

VC

PARKING TOTALS  

LEVEL QUANTITY
LEVEL 1 746
LEVEL 2 410
LEVEL 3 376

_____
TOTALS 1532

                     

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 2 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A052
SITE PLAN (LEVEL 2)



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IVE

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K

 C
R

EEK
 TR

AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

LEVEL 3 OFFICE
16,940 GSF

LEVEL 3 HOTEL;
17,000 SF
+959'-0"

DN
10%

9

9

15

5

6

6

5

OPEN TO BELOW

OPEN TO BELOW

OPEN TO BELOW

HOTEL RESTAURANT  NO. 1
4,800 S.F.

LOBBY / LOUNGE
2,040 S.F.BAR / LOUNGE

 1,650 S.F.

HOTEL RESTAURANT  NO. 2
 7,400 S.F.

OPEN TO BELOW

OPEN TO
BELOW

OPEN TO
BELOW

LEVEL 3 RESIDENTIAL,
62,197 GSF; 60 UNITS

+958'-0"

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

LEVEL 3 PARKING: 376 STALLS
+ 959'-0"

50 51

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

5

PARKING TOTALS  

LEVEL QUANTITY
LEVEL 1 746
LEVEL 2 410
LEVEL 3 376

_____
TOTALS 1532

                     

OPEN TO BELOW

7

16V
C

FITNESS/
LOUNGE

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

VC

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects .com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 3

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A053
SITE PLAN (LEVEL 3)



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

   LEVEL 4 HOTEL;
23,000 SF, 50 ROOMS
          +974'-0"

wp

LEVEL 4 OFFICE
18800 GSF

LEVEL 4 RESIDENTIAL,
56,925 GSF; 61 UNITS

+969'-0"

PARKING DECK BELOW

FITNESS/
LOUNGE

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 4 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A054
SITE PLAN (LEVEL 4)



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

LEVEL 5 OFFICE
18800 GSF

LEVEL 5-7 HOTEL;
23,000 SF,
50 ROOMS EA FLOOR

PARKING DECK BELOW

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 5-7 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A055
SITE PLAN (LEVEL 5-7)



RETAIL

RESIDENTIAL

OFFICE

HOTEL

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects .com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

01 STACKING DIAGRAM 

 

04.29.15

PDP-A001
STACKING DIAGRAMS

02 STACKING DIAGRAM 

 



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

TR
A

IN
IN

G
C

B
L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

F
O

O
D

TE
N

A
N

T
TE

N
A

N
T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
TA

C
TS

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
FF

IC
E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
A

TE
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
TI

S
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

TO
M

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

TU
R

N
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
AS

TE

B
A

LE
A

N
D

P
A

LL
E

T
S

TO
R

A
G

E

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

F
N

X
LS

F
N

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

F
N

F
N

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
SS

 L
E

A
S

A
B

LE
 A

R
EA

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E 

= 
15

4,
46

9 
S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

LOADING

LEVEL 1 HOTEL
HOTEL SERVICES 7,610 GSF

+ 930'-0"

SURFACE LEVEL PULL-IN PARKING: 31 STALLS

SU
R

FAC
E LEVEL PAR

KIN
G

: 96 STALLS

V
C

STORAGE
1100 S.F.

 MECHANICAL
600 S.F.

STORAGE
1,600 S.F.

WORK.
OFFICE
- 325 S.F.

HOUSEKEEPING
620 S.F.

FOOD AND
BEVERAGE
STORAGE

800 S.F.

C
A

FE
TE

R
IA

20
0 

S
.F

.

DOCK/
RECEIVING

300 S.F.

TRASH

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F

.

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F

.

SURFACE LEVEL PARKING: 619 STALLS

GC3GC3GC3GC3GC3GC3GC3

G
C

3
G

C
3

VC

SMALL OFFICE/ RETAIL
15,273 GSF

+ 930'-0" - 932'-0"

SMALL OFFICE/ RETAIL
21,323 GSF

+ 931'-0" - 935'-0"

SMALL RETAIL
19,439 GSF

+ 932'-0"- 935'-0"

PUBLIC PARKING LOT

PU
BLIC

 PAR
KIN

G
 LO

T

HORIZONTAL / VERTICAL CIRCULATION LEGEND

PRIVATE ELEVATOR

PRIVATE STAIR

PRIVATE CIRCULATION

PUBLIC STAIR

PUBLIC CIRCULATION

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 1

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A061
CIRCULATION DIAGRAM (LEVEL 1)



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

E

UP

16

5

4

24

LARGE
MEETING

ROOM
600 S.F.

LARGE
EVENT
SPACE

6,080 S.F.

SMALL
MEET.
ROOM

225 S.F.

SMALL
EVENT
SPACE

2,975 S.F.

LOBBY
2,000 S.F.

EVEN SPACE
PRE-FUNCTION

1,000 S.F.

26

3

12

34

18

HEALTH FOODS RESTAURANT
3,500 S.F.

SPA CIRCULATION / EVENT SPACE
1,400 S.F.

ESTHETICIAN
ROOMS
725 S.F.

R
E

S
T 

R
M

.
17

0 
S

.F
.

SPA TREATMENT ROOMS
700 S.F.

SPA TREATMENT
ROOMS
600 S.F.

R
E

S
T 

R
M

.
17

0 
S

.F
.

SPA ADMINISTRATION
560 S.F.

SPA
DECK

5,200 S.F.

C
O

FF
E

E
15

5 
S

.F
.

FR
O

N
T

D
E

S
K

17
5 

S
.F

.

B
E

LL
/

C
O

A
T

15
0 

S
.F

.

BUSINESS
CENTER
200 S.F.R

.R
.

ADMIN. OFFICES
1,575 S.F.

H.R.
190 S.F. R

.R
.

CONFERENCE ROOM
2,000 S.F.

CONFERENCE ROOM
2,800 S.F.

LOBBY
2,000 S.F.

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

HOTEL DROP OFF

THRU TRAFFIC

HOTEL TRAFFIC

OPEN TO BELOWOPEN TO BELOW

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO BELOW

BOUTIQUE SPA
5,700 S.F.87'-6 7/8"

LEVEL 2 PARKING: 410 STALLS
+ 947'-0"

49 51

V
C

VC

HORIZONTAL / VERTICAL CIRCULATION LEGEND

PRIVATE ELEVATOR

PRIVATE STAIR

PRIVATE CIRCULATION

PUBLIC STAIR

PUBLIC CIRCULATION

PRIVATE PARKING LOT

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 2 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A062
CIRCULAITON DIAGRAM (LEVEL 2)



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

DN
10%

9

9

15

5

6

6

5

OPEN TO BELOW

OPEN TO BELOW

OPEN TO BELOW

HOTEL RESTAURANT NO. 1
4,800 S.F.

LOBBY / LOUNGE
2,040 S.F.BAR / LOUNGE

 1,650 S.F.

HOTEL RESTAURANT NO. 2
 7,400 S.F.

OPEN TO BELOW

OPEN TO
BELOW

OPEN TO
BELOW

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

LEVEL 3 PARKING: 376 STALLS
+ 959'-0"

50 51

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

5

OPEN TO BELOW

7

16V
C

FITNESS/
LOUNGE

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

VC

PRIVATE ELEVATOR

PRIVATE STAIR

PRIVATE CIRCULATION

PUBLIC STAIR

PUBLIC CIRCULATION

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 3

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A063
CIRCULATION DIAGRAM (LEVEL 3)



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

wp

PARKING DECK BELOW

FITNESS/
LOUNGE

PRIVATE ELEVATOR

PRIVATE STAIR

PRIVATE CIRCULATION

PUBLIC STAIR

PUBLIC CIRCULATION

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 4 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A064
CIRCULATION DIAGRAM (LEVEL 4)



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

52

35

43

35

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

42

24

53

57

11

MARTWAY ST.

16

12

COMPACT

30COMPACT

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

CARTS

C
A

R
TS CO.

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

T

PARKING DECK BELOW

PRIVATE ELEVATOR

PRIVATE STAIR

PRIVATE CIRCULATION

PUBLIC STAIR

PUBLIC CIRCULATION

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 5-7 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A065
CIRCULATION DIAGRAM (LEVEL 5-7)



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

JOHNSON DRIVE

RO
E

SHAWNEE MISSION

T

T

MARTWAY ST.

VC

V
C

STORAGE
1100 S.F.

 MECHANICAL
600 S.F.

STORAGE
1,600 S.F.

WORK.
OFFICE
- 325 S.F.

HOUSEKEEPING
620 S.F.

FOOD AND
BEVERAGE
STORAGE

800 S.F.

C
A

FE
TE

R
IA

20
0 

S
.F

.

DOCK/
RECEIVING

300 S.F.

TRASH

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F
.

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F
.

R
O

EL
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

02 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - RETAIL / RESIDENTIAL

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 50' 100' 200'

04.29.15

PDP-A010
ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTES

03 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - RETAIL / RESIDENTIAL 

04 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - RETAIL / RESIDENTIAL 



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

JOHNSON DRIVE

RO
E

SHAWNEE MISSION

T

T

MARTWAY ST.

VC

V
C

STORAGE
1100 S.F.

 MECHANICAL
600 S.F.

STORAGE
1,600 S.F.

WORK.
OFFICE
- 325 S.F.

HOUSEKEEPING
620 S.F.

FOOD AND
BEVERAGE
STORAGE

800 S.F.

C
A

FE
TE

R
IA

20
0 

S
.F

.

DOCK/
RECEIVING

300 S.F.

TRASH

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F
.

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F
.

R
O

EL
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

HOTEL RESTAURANT NO. 1
4,800 S.F.

LOBBY / LOUNGE
2,040 S.F.

HOTEL RESTAURANT NO. 2
 7,400 S.F.

V
C

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

02 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - HOTEL

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 50' 100' 200'

04.29.15

PDP-A011
ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTES

03 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - HOTEL

04 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - HOTEL



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

JOHNSON DRIVE

RO
E

SHAWNEE MISSION

T

T

MARTWAY ST.

VC

V
C

STORAGE
1100 S.F.

 MECHANICAL
600 S.F.

STORAGE
1,600 S.F.

WORK.
OFFICE
- 325 S.F.

HOUSEKEEPING
620 S.F.

FOOD AND
BEVERAGE
STORAGE

800 S.F.

C
A

FE
TE

R
IA

20
0 

S
.F

.

DOCK/
RECEIVING

300 S.F.

TRASH

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F
.

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F
.

R
O

EL
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

HOTEL RESTAURANT NO. 1
4,800 S.F.

LOBBY / LOUNGE
2,040 S.F.

HOTEL RESTAURANT NO. 2
 7,400 S.F.

V
C

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

04.29.15

PDP-A012
BUILDING ELEVATIONS

02 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - OFFICE

03 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - OFFICE

04 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - OFFICE

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 50' 100' 200'



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

JOHNSON DRIVE

RO
E

SHAWNEE MISSION

T

T

MARTWAY ST.

VC

V
C

STORAGE
1100 S.F.

 MECHANICAL
600 S.F.

STORAGE
1,600 S.F.

WORK.
OFFICE
- 325 S.F.

HOUSEKEEPING
620 S.F.

FOOD AND
BEVERAGE
STORAGE

800 S.F.

C
A

FE
TE

R
IA

20
0 

S
.F

.

DOCK/
RECEIVING

300 S.F.

TRASH

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F
.

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F
.

R
O

EL
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

04.29.15

PDP-A013
BUILDING ELEVATIONS

02 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - COURTYARD

03 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - COURTYARD

04 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - COURTYARD

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 50' 100' 200'



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

JOHNSON DRIVE

RO
E

SHAWNEE MISSION

T

T

MARTWAY ST.

VC

V
C

STORAGE
1100 S.F.

 MECHANICAL
600 S.F.

STORAGE
1,600 S.F.

WORK.
OFFICE
- 325 S.F.

HOUSEKEEPING
620 S.F.

FOOD AND
BEVERAGE
STORAGE

800 S.F.

C
A

FE
TE

R
IA

20
0 

S
.F

.

DOCK/
RECEIVING

300 S.F.

TRASH

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F
.

E
M

P.
 W

A
S

H
/

- 2
00

 S
.F
.

R
O

EL
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

04.29.15

PDP-A014
BUILDING ELEVATIONS

02 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - PARKING GARAGE

03 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE  - PARKING GARAGE

04 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - PARKING GARAGE

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 50' 100' 200'



MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects .com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

01 WEST SITE ELEVATION 

 

04.29.15

PDP-A200
BUILDING ELEVATIONS

02 NORTH SITE ELEVATION

 

03 SOUTH SITE ELEVATION

FROM ROELAND DRIVE

FROM JOHNSON DRIVE

FROM SHAWNEE MISSION

T/O PARAPET
984'0"

LEVEL 4
969'-0"

LEVEL 3
958'-0"

LEVEL 2
947'-0"

LEVEL 1
930'-0" - 932'-0"

T/O PARAPET
984'0"

LEVEL 4
969'-0"

LEVEL 3
958'-0"

LEVEL 2
947'-0"

LEVEL 1
930'-0" - 932'-0"

LEVEL 1
930'-0"

LEVEL 2
947'-0"

LEVEL 3
959'-0"

LEVEL 4
976'-6"

LEVEL 5
987'-6"

LEVEL 6
1000'-0"

LEVEL 7
1011'-0"

T/O PARAPET
1023'-0"

LEVEL 3
959'-0"

LEVEL 4
976'-6"

LEVEL 5
987'-6"

T/O PARAPET
1002'-0"

LEVEL 1
929'-0"

T/O PARAPET
967'-6"

LEVEL 1
929'-0"

T/O PARAPET
967'-6"

04 EAST SITE ELEVATION

FROM ROE AVENUE



FIBER CEMENT BOARD CLADDING

FIBER CEMENT BOARD CLADDING

PERFORATED METAL SCREEN

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects .com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
SEPTEMBER 11, 2015 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

01 MATERIAL STUDIES - RESIDENTIAL / HOTEL / OFFICE 

 

04.29.15

PDP-A800
MATERIAL STUDIES

02 MATERIAL STUDIES - PARKING GARAGE

 







C

C C

C
C

C

C
C

C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C C C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
CC

C
C

C
C

C

C

C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

LEGEND

JOHNSON DRIVE

SH
AW

NEE
 M

IS
SI

ON

R
O

E

ROELAND DRIVE

BUILDING A
RETAIL

153543 SF

BUILDING E

RETAIL

19403 SF

BUILDING D

OFFICE/RETAIL

15243 SF

BUILDING C

RETAIL

22314 SF

BUILDING B

HOTEL

17,600 SF

VICINITY MAP

R

MARTWAY

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Line

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
Line

ttast
Ellipse

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon



C

C C

C
C

C

C
C

C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C C C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
CC

C
C

C
C

C

C

C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

LEGEND

JOHNSON DRIVE

SH
AW

NEE
 M

IS
SI

ON

PA
RKW

AY
 (H

W
Y 

69
)

R
O

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

ROELAND DRIVE

BUILDING A
RETAIL

FFE 929.00

BUILDING E

RETAIL

FFE=933.00

BUILDING D

OFFICE/RETAIL

FFE 931.00

BUILDING C

RETAIL

FFE 931.00

BUILDING B

HOTEL

FFE 930

VICINITY MAP

FFE=932.00

FFE=935.00

FFE 933.00

FFE=933.00

FFE=935.00

R

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
PolyLine

ttast
Rectangle

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon

ttast
Polygon



C

C
C

C
C

C C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

LEGEND

JO
H

N
SO

N
 D

R
IVE

ROE AVENUE
SHAWNEE MISSION

PARKWAY (U.S. HWY 56)

BUILDING A
RETAIL

VICINITY MAP

TRUCK MOVEMENT

BUILDING B
HOTEL SERVICES

BUILDING C
SMALL OFFICE/

RETAIL

BUILDING D
SMALL OFFICE/

RETAIL

BUILDING E
SMALL RETAIL

R



 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 
 

 

The regular meeting of the Mission Planning Commission was called to order by Chair Mike Lee 
at 7:00 PM Monday, September 28, 2015.  Members also present: Jim Brown, Robin Dukelow, 
Stuart Braden, Charlie Troppito, Scott Babcock, and Brad Davidson.  Also in attendance: Interim 
Community Development Director Danielle Murray.  Rob Simpson and Carla Mills were absent.

  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE JULY 27TH MEETING 

Mr. Brown moved and Mr. Braden seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the July 27th 
meeting. The vote was taken (5-0-2), Babcock and Davidson abstaining.  The motion carried. 

Mr. Lee provided guidance to the audience on the format of the public hearings portions of the 
meeting.  He indicated speakers would each be provided three minutes in which to address 
comments to the Commission chair, that all questions from the public would attempt to be 
answered, and that the Commission deals with land use questions. 

CASE#15-09 SPECIAL USE PERMIT - OVERNIGHT PET BOARDING AT 5420 JOHNSON 
DRIVE - PUBLIC HEARING  

 
Complete minutes to follow. 
 
Mr. Babcock moved and Mr. Brown seconded a motion to table Case #15-09 to the Planning 
Commission's next regular meeting on October 26th in order to allow the applicant time to 
address concerns about the proposed use as stated by the public and the Commission.  These 
concerns included upkeep of the exterior of the site particularly the north alley, storage of pet 
waste possibly interior, flies, and odors discernible from the current operation. 
The vote was taken (6-1-0). The motion carried. 
 

CASE#15-010 REVISED PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN-THE GATEWAY- PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Ms Murray provided the staff report.  She explained the overall process of site plan review in the 
City which includes both a preliminary and final site plan.  She stated that after the Planning 
Commission made a recommendation on the Revised Preliminary Site Plan Case before them 
that it would proceed to the City Council for final action.  After that, the applicant would be 
expected to file for a final site plan which would again be reviewed by the Planning Commission. 
She explained the scope of a preliminary site plan does not include all of the final details of 
architecture, building materials, or landscaping.   
 
Staff Report In Brief: 
In 2005 The Cameron Group, LLC, a development company from East Syracuse, New York, 
purchased the Mission Mall property with plans to build a mixed-use development on the site. In 
2006 the Planning Commission reviewed and approved the rezoning and preliminary site plan 
for the redevelopment of the subject property for urban development composed of retail, office, 

1 



 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 
 

 

hotel, restaurant, and residential uses (Ordinance #1203).  Since the “MXD” zoning and 
preliminary site plan was first approved the project has evolved through several revisions 
reflected in revised plans presented to the Planning Commission and City Council in 2007, 
2008, and January 2012.  Each of these plan approvals included a range of stipulations for site 
development issues, and requirements for additional details to be provided with final plan 
reviews.   
 
At this time the applicant is requesting a revised preliminary site plan approval for the entire 
development.  The applicant intends to proceed to file a final site development plan and to begin 
construction of the entire project as a single phase. 
 
The plan approved previously included a linear public plaza, or esplanade, along Roeland Drive 
and a four story parking structure directly connected to upper level retail and surrounding 
buildings as well as Shawnee Mission Parkway.  These features have been removed from the 
current application, and the parking structure is 3 stories with no below grade levels.  A hotel 
has been added to replace the retail and service uses at the south side of the site.  The 
development floor area has been reduced by 165,278 square feet, and the amount of parking 
has also been reduced by 755 stalls. 
 
Ms Murray explained that any topical areas of concern to staff or issues required to be 
addressed by the previous rezoning action in 2006 are addressed in the staff recommended 
conditions at the conclusion of the staff report.  She read a summary of each of the 27 proposed 
conditions and its origin into the record. 
 
Mr. Lee invited the applicant to address the Commission. 
 
Mr. Tom Valenti introduced himself on behalf of The Gateway Developers LLC and his team 
including his son and partner Matt Valenti, Josh Shelton and Steve Salzer of El Dorado 
Architects, Jesse Peckham of Olsson Associates Engineers, and Korb Maxwell of Polsinelli.  He 
stated that the plan being presented to the Commission was intended to incorporate the 
feedback received on previous plans which complied with “MXD” zoning, which was relatively 
dense, incorporated mixed use elements, and and also work financially.  Mr. Valenti explained 
that while somewhat smaller the plan still included a 155,00 square foot Walmart, residential 
market rate apartments above retail, and a 200 room boutique hotel.  He declined to name the 
hotel until a deal was finalized.  Mr. Valenti also explained that an additional 50,000 office 
building was included in the plan should a tenant be found.  If no tenant was identified, then the 
office building would not be built.   
 
He indicated that a contractor had been included in the design of the proposed plan from the 
beginning in order to ensure the plan works for them financially.  He stated that several 
elements of the proposed plan make a large difference in cost from the 2012 plan.  This 
included the separation of the parking structure from the surrounding buildings.  He stated he 

2 



 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 
 

 

hoped to re-beginning construction either at the end of 2015 or the beginning of 2016.  Mr. 
Valenti stated that Mr. Maxwell would be asking for clarification of several of the staff comments 
at the end of the presentation by Matt, Josh and Steve. 
 
Mr Josh Shelton of El Dorado Architects thanked the Commission for their service and 
proceeded to highlight the urban design elements of the project which they focused on during 
their work on the project.  These included the integration of a mix of uses including a big retailer 
and boutique hotel with the supporting parking facilities in a Texas Wrap form.  Mr. Shelton 
stated that the creation of a green space between the buildings and the parking structure would 
benefit the residents and other visitors to the retail development.  He compared it to a New 
Orleans French Quarter style courtyard with connection between the hotel and residential uses. 
Mr Shelton also explained that the new layout of buildings allows them the match the street 
alignment better and create dynamic spaces on all three while still allowing the the big box retail 
to have its own space.  
 
Matt Valenti and Josh Shelton concluded their presentation by describing the development in 
detail level by level to the Commission.  They highlighted the third party restaurants and 
potential spa facilities in the hotel and the connections to the apartments, screening of the 
parking garage, residential parking security features, proposed glazing on building “A” along 
Johnson Drive, and the connection of boardwalk to Roeland Drive. 
 
The Commission was then given the opportunity to ask questions of the applicant. 
 
Mr. Babcock asked for an explanation of the office building; what the development would look 
like without the office, if it could be added back in at a later date, how soon the decision would 
be made, and the parking layout. 
 
Mr Shelton and Mr. Tom Valenti responded that the proposed office would contain multiple 
levels, if not built the development would simply be squared off on that end, and would maintain 
the ground floor parking as shown for Building “A”.  They stated that adding an office back in at 
a later date would be difficult and unlikely due to cost and construction logistic challenges.  They 
indicated that a decision about whether to include the office would likely be reached in February 
or March of 2016 and that their brokers were in discussions with tenants. 
 
Mr. Babcock asked staff if the project was still compliant with the MXD zoning without the office 
square footages. 
 
Ms. Murray replied in the affirmative and directed the Commission to the square footages table 
provided in the packet. 
 
Mr. Braden asked if the courtyard space and boardwalk area would have a raised deck. 
 

3 



 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 
 

 

Mr. Matt Valenti responded in the affirmative and that it would be accessible to the public. 
 
Mr Troppito ask the applicant if they planned to install green roofs on building “A” as mentioned 
in  staff condition number eight. 
 
Mr. Tom Valenti indicated that the plan for screening the rooftop no longer included green roofs 
but did include a parapet wall of sufficient height. 
 
Mr Braden asked asked about the appearance and materials under consideration for screening 
or wrapping the parking garage. 
 
Mr. Shelton responded that that the screening material would be intended to extend 6’ in height 
on each level and likely be constructed of metal with a texture and shape to create dappled light 
effects particularly with ground level tree plantings and uplighting. 
 
Mr. Brown asked of the ground level courtyard was intended for the use of the residents as well. 
 
Mr. Shelton responded in the affirmative and pointed out other amenities intended for the 
residents including the open terrace and connections to the hotel facilities. 
 
Mr. Brown asked what the curved element shown the northeast corner of the site was intended 
to be. 
 
Mr. Matt Valenti indicated it would likely be a pre-cast wall with a metal wrap for the installation 
of a sign or other gateway feature. 
 
Mr. Braden asked for clarification of the elevation of Shawnee Mission Parkway relationship to 
the hotel terrace. 
 
Mr Shelton explained that the intersection was above the terrace. 
 
Mr Braden asked how the applicant intended to meet the requirement for 75% glazing along 
Johnson Drive. 
 
Mr. Matt Valenti indicated they intend to use display windows to meet the glazing requirement. 
 
Mr. Brown asked about fire access to the structures and site, and if the building would be wood 
frame construction. 
 
Mr. Salzer responded that meeting with the fire marshall had taken place and they would 
continue to meet required designs for fire access, ceiling heights, and hydrant layouts. He also 
confirmed that construction would be wood framing. 

4 



 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 
 

 

 
Mr. Babcock asked the applicant of other examples of similar development concepts retail and 
apartment combinations and wood/podium in the area. 
 
Mr. Tom Valenti provided examples including Mission Farms. 
 
Mr. Davidson asked for examples of Walmart stores within urban style development elsewhere 
in the country. 
 
Mr. Tom Valenti provided an example in Atlanta, Georgia.  He stated he was not aware of any 
other Walmart stores with a second floor above them. 
 
Mr Davidson stated he thought it was critically important to get the estimation of the necessary 
parking correct.  He stated he was also concerned about views of the parking structure and 
would appreciate a 3D model or other illustration to examine this further. 
 
Mr Tom Valenti stated that he would also like to provide something like this at the time of final 
site plan to answer such questions. 
 
Mr. Davidson asked about the certainty of including a hotel in the development and who the 
tenant or operator might be. 
 
Mr. Tom Valenti indicated that an affiliate of the Cameron Group would own and operate the 
hotel and that they have experience doing this.   
 
Ms Dukelow asked staff about the applicability of the discount store ordinance to the proposed 
development. 
 
Ms Murray explained that now, as in the past when reviewing proposed plans for this site, that 
the definition of discount store or discount super store was not met.  The site plan under 
consideration reflected a mixed use development and was therefore subject to the criteria in the 
“MXD” zoning district.  
 
Ms Dukelow asked about light colored roofing materials and or the upper level pavement to be 
selected for use in the project to limit heat island effects. 
 
Mr. Tom Valenti indicated that materials had not yet been selected but that they would explore 
the use of light colored roofing materials. 
 
Mr. Korb Maxwell concluded the question and answer session with the Commission by 
addressing three of the proposed 27 staff conditions.  These included the following: 
Staff Condition #1 and #2-Mr. Maxwell stated they understood the Johnson Drive Guidelines 

5 



 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 
 

 

and would make a good faith effort at the time of final site plan to meet both the core tenants 
needs and provide the required percentage of glazing. 
Staff Condition #3-Mr. Maxwell asked that this condition be struck (or at least the final sentence 
of it) as they will not be providing entrances into the Walmart along Johnson Drive.  He stated 
the applicant would be open to working to find a design solution that met the spirit of the 
requirement but that their tenant does not provide such a floor plan option. 
 
Ms. Dukelow asked the applicant to consider a design solution to similar to that provided by 
Natural Grocers on Johnson Drive where multiple street entrances feed into one interior 
entrance. 
 
Mr. Tom Valenti indicated he would be willing to address design options with the final site plan. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated they would okay working within the broad intent of the Johnson Drive Design 
Guidelines. 
 
Mr. Lee opened the public hearing to the public and invited any persons wishing to make 
comment to approach the podium.  He asked speakers to identify themselves and limit their 
comments to three minutes. 
 
Ms Barbara Porro, 4982 W 60th Terrace, Mission, Kansas addressed the Commission.  She 
asked that the following questions be answered:  Will 60th Terrace be the major entrance into 
the hotel, apartments, and Walmart?  How will service trucks access the Walmart, will it be via 
60th Terrace.  She also stated she had concerns about the ability to continue to make right 
turns out of 60th Terrace heading south with an increase in traffic in the neighborhood after the 
site is fully developed.  She also asked about assurances of the phasing of construction to 
ensure that not just a Walmart was constructed. 
 
Mr. Lee thanked Ms Porro for her comments and stated answered would be forthcoming before 
the end of the meeting. 
 
Mr. Jim Carlet, 5921 W. 61st Street, Mission, Kansas addressed the Commission.  He also 
asked what kind of assurances could be secured that not only the Walmart and a parking lot 
might be constructed.  He was concerned about the fluctuations in the proposed plans over the 
years and even with the possible deletion of the office building from this proposed plan. 
 
Ms Sandi Russell, 6416 Milhaven Drive, Mission, Kansas and owner of Twisted Sisters Coffee 
Shop.  She concurred with the previous speaker's concerns about the phasing of construction to 
ensure a mixed use development.  She also stated she has concerns about the design of 
on-street parking on Johnson Drive which is proposed based on her experience in the 
downtown.   She wanted to make sure that adequate space would be allowed for backing 
maneuvers into the street. 

6 



 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 
 

 

 
Seeing no one else asking to make a comment, Mr. Lee closed the public hearing.  He invited 
the applicant to address the questions and comments raised specifically, 60th Terrace traffic 
flow, project phasing, and design of Johnson Drive parking. 
 
Mr. Tom Valenti and Mr. Shelton responded to the questions about 60th Terrace by explaining 
that Walmart trucks would use the service drive off of Roe Avenue to the loading dock and that 
only hotel and residential traffic would be accessing the drive as the driveway does not lead into 
the Walmart level.  They also referenced the traffic study which is underway to study all traffic 
impacts from the development. 
 
Mr. Tom Valenti and Mr. Shelton also stated that it is both the contractor’s and developer’s 
preference to build the entire development all at once due to logistic and financial reasons.  Mr. 
Tom Valenti stated that construction of the Walmart and parking garage would likely start first to 
be followed shortly after by the remainder except for the office building which is dependent on a 
tenant. 
 
Mr. Tom Valenti pointed out the design differences along Johnson Drive at the site compared to 
the downtown.  Specifically, that the street is a 3-lane section, that the parking stalls start at 
least 200’ from the intersection of Johnson Drive and Roeland Drive, and that the stalls are built 
into the site periphery not the street lanes.   
 
Ms Dukelow asked staff to clarify the role of zoning in phasing of the project.  She stated that 
the current zoning of the property requires multiple uses and if only one of the uses were to be 
built then the property would not be in compliance. 
 
Ms Murray agreed with Ms Dukelow and indicated that phasing concerns would be a zoning 
concern and could be enforced through the building permit and certificate of occupancy 
processes.  She also stated that phasing could also be addressed in other ways such as 
through the development agreement process.   
 
Mr. Babcock moved and Ms Dukelow seconded a motion to recommend approval of Case 
#15-10 to the City Council with conditions 1-27 as recommended by staff. 
 
Mr Troppito offered an amendment to delete the last sentence of staff condition #3 which 
states  “Provide a public entrance for Building “A” along Johnson Drive” as it appears it is just 
not doable.  Mr. Brown seconded the motion.   
 
Mr. Babcock stated he thought that this was an issue for review at the time of the final site plan. 
 
The vote was taken on the amendment (3-4-0). The motion failed. 
 

7 



 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 
 

 

Mr Braden offered an amendment to reword staff condition #3 to state that the applicant work 
with staff to provide the appearance of an entrance off of Johnson Drive.  Mr. Troppito 
seconded the motion. The vote was taken on the amendment (3-4-0). The motion failed. 
 
The vote was taken on the original motion with no amendments (7-0-0).  The motion carried. 

 
CITY UPDATES 

 
Ms. Murray updated the Commissioners on current City business including the Comprehensive 
Plan Update, Parks Master Plan, Quad States Planning Conference, and upcoming Planning 
Commission calendar. 

ADJOURNMENT 
  

With no other agenda items, a motion was made and seconded to to adjourn.  (Vote was 
unanimous).  The motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 9:28 P.M. 
   

 
 _________________________________ 

Mike Lee, Chair 
 ATTEST:     
  
______________________________   
 

8 



 

City of Mission  Item Number:  6a. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY  Date:  October 16, 2015 

Administration  From:  Laura Smith 
Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 
 

RE: Municipal Election Transitions 
 
DETAILS: Earlier this year, the Kansas Legislature passed House Bill 2104 (the Act) which 
moved City elections from April of odd-years to November of odd-years.  The Act was a 
compromise version of multiple bills and contains a number of contradictions and ambiguities 
which cities had to resolve. 
 
Over the last two months, the Council reviewed transition options and provided staff with 
direction to prepare the necessary charter ordinances to bring Mission’s elections into 
conformance with the new requirements.  The Council wanted a transition plan that would 
include the following: 
 

● Ability to hold the April 2016 election 
● 4 year terms  
● Maintain non-partisan elections 
● Maintain current process for filling Council vacancies 

 
Staff has engaged in on-going conversations with the League, the Johnson County Election 
Office, the Secretary of State’s office and the cities of Prairie Village and Westwood to review 
and evaluate options.  Following confirmation by the Secretary of State’s office earlier this 
month that there was authority to hold the April 2016 election, the Council asked staff to prepare 
the necessary charter ordinances to complete the transition with elections in April 2016 and 
November 2017.  Details of the transition plan are outlined in a memo included in the packet. 
 
In order to adopt the transition plan, the Council will consider two charter ordinances.  The first 
details the specific transition plan and replaces Charter Ordinances 7a and 23.  The second 
ordinance allows for the Council to maintain the current process of filling Council vacancies. 
 
A charter ordinance must be passed by a ⅔ vote of the governing body (Mayor and 
Councilmembers).  After adoption, the charter ordinances are published for two consecutive 
weeks in the Legal Record.  Following the second publication, there is a 60 day protest period to 
allow time for the public petition for a referendum on the matter.  If no petition is filed during this 
period, the charter ordinance becomes effective on the 61st day after publication. 
 

 

Related Statute/City Ordinance:  Chapter 605 

Line Item Code/Description:   

Available Budget:  n/a 

 



 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: October 16, 2015 

To: Mayor & City Council  

From: Laura Smith, City Administrator  

RE: Election Transition Ordinances 

 
Earlier this year, the Kansas Legislature passed House Bill 2104 (the Act) which moved City 
elections from April of odd-years to November of odd-years.  The Act was a compromise 
version of multiple bills and contains a number of contradictions and ambiguities which cities 
had to resolve. 
 
Over the last two months, the Council reviewed transition options and provided staff with 
direction to prepare the necessary charter ordinances to bring Mission’s elections into 
conformance with the new requirements.  The Council wanted a transition plan that would 
include the following: 
 

● Ability to hold the April 2016 election 
● 4 year terms  
● Maintain non-partisan elections 
● Maintain current process for filling Council vacancies 

 
Staff has engaged in on-going conversations with the League, the Johnson County Election 
Office, the Secretary of State’s office and the cities of Prairie Village and Westwood to review 
and evaluate options.  Following confirmation by the Secretary of State’s office earlier this 
month that there was authority to hold the April 2016 election, the Council requested staff 
prepare charter ordinances to complete the transition with elections in April 2016 and November 
2017.  Details of the transition plan are outlined below: 
 

● Shortens terms expiring in April 2018 to the second Monday in January 2018 (Section 
4), when the city officials elected in a November 2017 would take office. 

● Calls for an election on the Tuesday succeeding the first Monday in April 2016 (Section 
5a). Those elected in April 2016 take office the first regular meeting following certification 
of the election results.  Terms expire on the second Monday in January 2020 when 
officials elected in November 2019 take office. 

● Calls for an election on the Tuesday succeeding the first Monday in November 2017 
(Section 5b).  Those elected in November 2017 take office in January 2018 and their 
terms expire the second Monday in January 2022. 

● Succeeding elections will occur every two years (November of odd years) with both 
Councilmembers and the Mayor having four year terms. 

● Requires ten (10) signatures on a nomination petition in lieu of paying the $20 filing fee 
established by HB 2104. 

 

1 



 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
 
A second charter ordinance, exempting the City from the provisions of the new legislation that 
require a special election to fill a Council vacancy, is also required.  This charter ordinance does 
not specify the process, as that is already outlined in the City’s municipal code (Section 
115.020).  The process currently calls for a Council vacancy to be filled by the Mayor with the 
consent of a majority of the City Council. 
  
A charter ordinance must be passed by a ⅔ vote of the governing body (Mayor and 
Councilmembers).  After adoption, the charter ordinances are published for two consecutive 
weeks in the Legal Record.  Following the second publication, there is a 60 day protest period to 
allow time for the public to petition for a referendum on the matter.  If no petition is filed during 
this period, the charter ordinance becomes effective on the 61st day after publication. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions. 
 

2 



CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
  

A CHARTER ORDINANCE IMPLEMENTING PROVISIONS REGULATING MUNICIPAL 

ELECTIONS PASSED BY THE KANSAS LEGISLATURE (HB 2014); AMENDING CHARTER 

ORDINANCES RELATING TO THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS, THEIR TERMS OF OFFICE, 

TRANSITIONS TO NOVEMBER ELECTIONS, AND NOMINATION PETITIONS AND, 

PROVIDING SUBSTITUTE AND ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS ON THE SAME SUBJECT, AND 

REPEALING CHARTER ORDINANCES 7A and 23. 
  
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS: 
  
Section 1.  The Kansas legislature passed HB 2104 which included, among other things, moving 
city elections from April of odd years to November of odd years; requiring establishment by 
ordinance of the terms of the office of elected officials; allowing elections in November in even 
numbered years for the purpose of staggering elections or to establish three year terms of office. 
  
Section 2.  The City of Mission, Kansas, by the power vested in it by Article 12, Section 5 of the 
Kansas Constitution hereby elects and does exempt itself and make inapplicable to it the 
provisions of K.S.A. 14-103, K.S.A. 14-201, and K.S.A. 14-204, that apply to this city, but are parts 
of enactments which do not apply uniformly to all cities.  
  
Section 3.  (a) The governing body shall consist of a mayor and eight (8) council members to 
be elected to terms as set forth herein.  The mayor and council members shall be residents and 
qualified electors of the City of Mission, Kansas. 
  
(b)  The governing body of the city may, by ordinance, divide the city into wards and precincts, 
establish the boundaries thereof, and number the same.  No ordinance redefining wards and 
precincts shall become effective less than 30 days prior to the next regular city election.  
 
Section 4.  Those governing body positions with terms expiring in April 2018, shall expire on the 
second Monday in January of 2018, when the city officials elected in the November 2017 
general election take office. 
 
Section 5. (a) A general election of city officers shall take place on the Tuesday succeeding the 
first Monday in April 2016. Those governing body positions elected in April 2016 shall expire on 
the second Monday in January 2020, when the city officials elected in the November 2019 
general election take office.   
 
(b) A general election of city officers shall take place on the Tuesday succeeding the first 
Monday in November 2017. Those governing body positions elected in November 2017 shall 
expire on the second Monday in January 2022, when the city officials in the November 2021 
general election take office.   
 



(c) Succeeding elections will be held every two years for all such governing body positions 
whose terms have expired. One council member from each ward shall be elected at one 
election, and the other council member from that ward shall be elected at the succeeding 
election. The council members shall have four year terms. The Mayor shall have a four year 
term. 
 
Section 6.  Effective January 1, 2017, any person desiring to become a candidate for city office 
elected at large shall file with the county election officer, before the filing deadline, established in 
K.S.A. 25-205, and amendments thereto, a declaration of candidacy on a form furnished by the 
county election officer as specified by the secretary of state.  The nomination petition must be 
signed by ten (10) of the qualified electors of the City of Mission. 
  
Section 7.  This Ordinance shall be published once a week for two (2) consecutive weeks in the 
official city newspaper. 
  
Section 8.  This Charter Ordinance shall take effect sixty-one (61) days after its final publication 
unless a sufficient petition for referendum is filed and a referendum held on this Charter Ordinance 
as provided in Article 12, Section 5, Subsection (c) (3) of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, 
in which case this Charter Ordinance shall become effective if approved by the majority of the 
electors voting thereon. 
  
Section 9.  Charter Ordinances No. 7A and 23 are hereby repealed. 
  
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY by not less than two-thirds of the 
members elect voting in favor thereof this 21st day of October, 2015. 
  
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR this 21st day of October, 2015. 
  
  
  
                                                         _________________________________ 
                                                      Steve Schowengerdt, Mayor 
  
 
ATTEST: 
  
 
 
  
_____________________________ 
Martha Sumrall 
City Clerk 
 
 



 

PJ-890452-V1 

CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
 
 

A CHARTER ORDINANCE EXEMPTING THE CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS 
FROM THE PROVISIONS OF L. 2015, CHAPTER 88, SECTION 71, RELATING 
TO THE FILLING OF GOVERNING BODY VACANCIES. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF MISSION, 
KANSAS: 
 
Section 1. The City of Mission, Kansas, by virtue of the power vested in it by 
Article 12, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, hereby elects and 
does exempt itself and make inapplicable to it L. 2015, Chapter 88, Section 71, 
relating to the filling of governing body vacancies, which enactment applies to 
this city, but does not apply uniformly to all cities. 
 
Section 2.  The City of Mission, Kansas shall continue to follow previously 
enacted Charter Ordinances and the provisions of the Code of the City of 
Mission, Kansas relating to the filling of vacancies in the Governing Body.   
 
Section 3.  This Ordinance shall be published once a week for two (2) 
consecutive weeks in the official city newspaper. 
 
Section 4.  This Charter Ordinance shall take effect sixty-one (61) days after its 
final publication unless a sufficient petition for referendum is filed and a 
referendum held on this Charter Ordinance as provided in Article 12, Section 5, 
Subsection (c) (3) of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, in which case this 
Charter Ordinance shall become effective if approved by the majority of the 
electors voting thereon. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY by not less than two-
thirds of the members elect voting in favor thereof this 21st day of October, 2015. 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR this 21st day of October, 2015. 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Steve Schowengerdt, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Martha Sumrall 
City Clerk 


	Packet for CC 10.21.15
	Case15-10StaffReportGatewayPrelimSitePlan
	SF by level (GROSS Leasable)
	Traffic Study Excerpt
	Gateway Preliminary Development Plan 9.12.12
	Gateway Prelim Site Plan 9.11.15
	00-Title Page
	01-A050 (SITE PLAN)
	A050 (SITE PLAN)

	01-A051 (LEVEL 1)
	A051 (LEVEL 1)

	01-A052 (LEVEL 2)
	A052 (LEVEL 2)

	01-A053 (LEVEL 3)
	01-A054 (LEVEL 4)
	A054 (LEVEL 4)

	01-A055 (LEVEL 5-7)
	A055 (LEVEL 5-7)

	02-Stacking Diagram
	02.5-Site Plan-Circulation Diagram
	A051 (LEVEL 1)
	A052 (LEVEL 2)
	A053 (LEVEL 3)
	A054 (LEVEL 4)
	A055 (LEVEL 5-7)

	03-Arch Vignettes
	001
	002
	003
	004
	005

	04-Elevations
	05-Material Studies
	PD-100
	PD-101
	PD-C100 GENERAL LAYOUT PLAN
	PD-C200 GRADING PLAN
	PD-C300 TURNING TEMPLATE



